BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION STATE OF MISSOURI

| In the Matter of the tariff filing of |) | |
|---------------------------------------|---|-----------------------|
| Aquila, Inc. d/b/a Aquila |) | Case No. GT-2003-0038 |
| Networks - L&P |) | Tariff No. 200300096 |
| |) | |
| In the matter of the tariff filing of |) | Case No. GT-2003-0039 |
| Aquila, Inc. d/b/a Aquila |) | Tariff No. 200300095 |
| Networks - MPS |) | |
| | | |

Consolidated

UNANIMOUS STIPULATION AND AGREEMENT

COME NOW Aquila, Inc. d/b/a Aquila Networks - L&P and Aquila Networks - MPS (Aquila), the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission (Staff), the Office of the Public Counsel (OPC), and the Missouri School Boards' Association (Association) (collectively referred to as the parties) and submit this Unanimous Stipulation and Agreement (Stipulation and Agreement) for approval by the Missouri Public Service Commission (Commission).

BACKGROUND

- 1. On August 2, 2002, Aquila submitted proposed tariff sheets dealing with natural gas aggregation for schools pursuant to § 393.310 RSMo Supp. 2002. The sheets bore a proposed effective date of October 1, 2002. Subsequently, following discussions among the parties, a Joint Motion to Reconsider a Commission Order, the Commission issued an Order on September 10, 2002, directing Aquila to file new tariffs bearing an effective date of November 1, 2002.
- 2. On August 13, a procedural conference was held, and the date of August 26, 2002, was set for the submission of a proposed procedural schedule. On August 22, 2002, the Commission granted the Association intervention. On August 23, 2002, a technical conference

involving all of the parties was held. On August 26, 2002, a proposed procedural schedule in this case was filed by the Staff. The Procedural Schedule was adopted by the Commission Order on August 29, 2002.

3. The parties have held several discussions concerning the content of the proposed tariff, the intentions of the General Assembly in passing the new legislation, and the most practical means to accomplish the intention of the legislation. As a result of those discussions, the parties have agreed to the following Stipulation and Agreement, which resolves all issues in this proceeding in the manner set out herein.

RESOLUTION OF ISSUES

- 4. Tariff Sheets. The parties agree that the Commission should approve the illustrative tariff sheets shown in Appendix A (Aquila Networks MPS) and Appendix B (Aquila Networks L&P), attached hereto, and should issue an order authorizing the filing by Aquila of tariff sheets which are identical in content to the illustrative sheets shown in Appendix A and Appendix B, to be effective on October 29, 2002. The Commission is required by the new legislation to act on the proposed sheets by November 1, 2002. As indicated, the proposed sheets would institute new procedures for the transportation of natural gas by school districts on an experimental basis. The specific date indicated for the sheets to take effect correspond to the start of billing cycles of Aquila. Those particular dates are requested to minimize the amount of effort and cost needed to institute this new program. The Association desires that the sheets take effect at the earliest practical time.
- 5. Revenue Impact. The parties believe that the agreed-upon changes to Aquila's transportation procedures reflected in the proposed tariff sheets will not result in a material change to its revenue requirement.

6. Reporting Requirements. Aquila shall, no later than June 1st of each year of the experimental program, provide records of the revenues generated and expenses incurred as a result of this experimental program. These records shall be provided to the Staff and OPC and shall be categorized in sufficient detail to permit the Staff and OPC to determine what under- or over-recovery of expenses may be taking place at that time and to determine what changes in aggregation and/or balancing fees may be appropriate at that time to prevent any harm to the groups identified in section 393.310 RSMo Supp. 2002. The statute provides that the Commission may, no later than November 1st of each year of the experimental program, implement any adjustments in aggregation or balancing fees deemed appropriate to comply with section 393.310 RSMo Supp. 2002.

7. <u>Legislative Requirements.</u>

- A. The new legislation provides that the Commission "shall approve such tariffs upon finding that implementation of the aggregation program set forth in such tariffs will not have any negative financial impact on the gas corporation, its other customers or local taxing authorities, and that the aggregation charge is sufficient to generate revenue at least equal to all incremental costs caused by the experimental aggregation program." § 393.310.5 RSMo Supp. 2002.
- B. The parties have discussed the intentions of the sponsors and drafters of this legislation and have also discussed latent internal inconsistencies in the legislation, including, but not limited to, the conflict between the "hold harmless" provisions in subsection 5 and the specific price cap provision for an "aggregation and balancing fee" in subdivision (2) of subsection 4. The parties have also discussed practical alternatives which are consistent with the overall intention of the legislation to launch an experimental program to afford a means of

natural gas aggregation and transportation to school districts and individual schools in the state.

- C. The parties have also discussed the findings the Commission is required by § 393.310.5 RSMo Supp. 2002 to make in order to approve the proposed tariffs, and to aid the Commission in making such findings, respectfully state as follows:
- 1. The parties agree that the illustrative tariff sheets in <u>Appendix A</u> and <u>Appendix B</u> have been designed to preclude material financial impacts on local taxing authorities by requiring eligible school entities to agree to pay local taxes or similar fees in a manner similar to the way such taxes are levied on sales customers.
- 2. The parties agree that the illustrative tariff sheets in <u>Appendix A</u> and <u>Appendix B</u> have been designed to preclude negative, material financial impacts on Aquila by including new aggregation and balancing fees.
- 3. The parties agree that the illustrative tariff sheets in <u>Appendix A</u> and <u>Appendix B</u> have been designed to preclude negative, material financial impacts on the other customers of Aquila, since no changes to the tariffs of other Aquila customer classes are being proposed at this time.
- 4. The parties agree that the illustrative tariff sheets in <u>Appendix A</u> and <u>Appendix B</u> have been designed with an aggregation charge. The parties cannot, at this time, assert without limitation that the specific charge is "sufficient to generate revenue at least equal to all incremental costs caused by the experimental aggregation program." Given that this is a new provision, and there are no facts or experience as to what the costs will be, how many customers may be served by the provision, or what volumes will be transported, there is simply no way at this time to make an unqualified representation on this particular point. The parties, however, do assert that given the overall structure of the new tariff provisions, they have

attempted to minimize the costs covered by the charge.

- Reservations Due to Nature of Experiment. The parties acknowledge that Aquila's actual experience under this experimental program may be considerably different from the estimates which were, of necessity, used in the development of the provisions. The parties also acknowledge that, as with any new piece of legislation, there may be unforeseen complications or circumstances which no party has yet discovered or fully appreciated. As a result, and giving due consideration to the legislative directive that this experiment "not have any negative financial impact on the gas corporation, its other customers or local taxing authorities," the parties agree that they will not seek to unreasonably delay the implementation of changes which Aquila may propose to the provisions shown in **Appendix A** and **Appendix B** if the actual implementation of the program varies significantly from what was originally contemplated and Aquila is experiencing negative financial impacts as a result of implementing or offering this program. No party shall oppose any reasonable request by Aquila for expedited treatment of such changes.
- 9. The attached tariffs in <u>Appendix A</u> and <u>Appendix B</u> also provide for a small volume aggregation service. In addition to providing the services required by Section 393.310, RSMo. Supp. 2002, the tariffs also provide a similar service to those customers with loads which are similar to the qualifying schools. This structure is substantially similar to that used in Aquila's small volume aggregation program which was previously approved by the Commission on August 29, 2000, in Case No. GT-2001-61. The parties recommend that, in addition to the above, the Commission approve and allow to go into effect all parts of the subject tariffs.

GENERAL PROVISIONS

10. Reservations.

A. This Stipulation and Agreement has resulted from extensive negotiations among the parties and the terms hereof are interdependent. In the event the Commission does not adopt this Stipulation and Agreement in total, then this Stipulation and Agreement shall be void and no party shall be bound, prejudiced, or in any way affected by any of the agreements or provisions hereof. The stipulations herein are specific to the resolution of this proceeding, and all stipulations are made without prejudice to the rights of the parties to take other positions in other proceedings, or in this proceeding should the Commission decide either not to approve this Stipulation and Agreement or to in any way condition its approval of same.

- B. It is specifically understood and agreed that this Stipulation and Agreement represents a negotiated settlement of the issues in this proceeding settled in a manner that is in the public interest. Neither Aquila, the Association, the Commission, its Staff, nor the OPC, shall be deemed to have approved, accepted, agreed, or consented to any accounting principle, ratemaking principle or cost of service determination underlying, or supposed to underlie any of the issues provided for herein.
- C. All parties further understand and agree that the provisions of this Stipulation and Agreement relate only to the specific matters referred to herein, and no party or person waives any claim or right which it otherwise may have with respect to any matters not expressly provided for in this Stipulation and Agreement.
- 11. <u>Contingent Waiver of Rights</u>. In the event the Commission accepts the specific terms of this Stipulation and Agreement, the parties waive with respect to the issues resolved herein: their respective rights pursuant to Section 536.070(2), RSMo 2000 to call, examine and

cross-examine witnesses; their respective rights to present oral argument or written briefs pursuant to Section 536.080.1, RSMo 2000; their respective rights to the reading of the transcript by the Commission pursuant to Section 536.080.2, RSMo 2000; their respective rights to seek rehearing pursuant to Section 386.500, RSMo 2000; and their respective rights to judicial review pursuant to Section 386.510, RSMo 2000. If this Stipulation and Agreement is not approved by the Commission, the parties request that a procedural schedule be established which provides for the filing of testimony and a hearing, to include the opportunity for cross-examination.

12. Staff's Rights.

A. The Staff shall file suggestions or a memorandum in support of this Stipulation and Agreement and the other parties shall have the right to file responses within five (5) days of receipt of Staff's supporting pleading. The parties agree that any and all discussions related to this Stipulation and Agreement shall be privileged and shall not be subject to discovery, admissible in evidence, or in any way used, described or discussed in any proceeding, except as expressly specified herein. The contents of any memorandum provided by any party are its own and are not acquiesced in or otherwise adopted by the other signatories to this Stipulation and Agreement, whether or not the Commission approves and adopts this Stipulation and Agreement.

B. The Staff shall also have the right to provide, at any agenda meeting at which this Stipulation and Agreement is noticed to be considered by the Commission, whatever oral explanation the Commission requests, provided that the Staff shall, to the extent reasonably practicable, promptly provide other parties with advance notice of when the Staff shall respond to the Commission's request for such explanation once such explanation is requested from Staff. Staff's oral explanation shall be subject to public disclosure, except to the extent it refers to

matters that are privileged or protected from disclosure pursuant to any Protective Order issued in this case.

- 13. Provision of Additional Information. To assist the Commission in its review of this Stipulation and Agreement, the parties also request that the Commission advise them of any additional information that the Commission may desire from the parties relating to the matters addressed in this Stipulation and Agreement, including any procedures for furnishing such information to the Commission.
- 14. <u>Suspension of Procedural Schedule; Admission of Pre-filed Testimony</u>. The parties ask that, in view of this Stipulation and Agreement, the Commission suspend the balance of the procedural schedule and admit the pre-filed testimony submitted by Staff, Aquila, and the Association into the record without further formality.

WHEREFORE, the undersigned parties respectfully request that the Commission issue its Order:

- a) Approving all of the specific terms and conditions of this Stipulation and Agreement;
 - b) Suspending the procedural schedule;
 - c) Admitting the pre-filed testimony into the record; and,
 - d) Granting such further relief as the Commission should find reasonable and just.

Respectfully submitted,

DANA K. JOYCE General Counsel

/s/ Robert V. Franson

Robert V. Franson MBE # 34643 Associate General Counsel Missouri Public Service Commission P.O. Box 360 Jefferson City, MO 65102

Tel: 573 751-6651 Fax: 573 751-9285

Email: rfranson@mail.state.mo.us

Attorney for the Staff of the Public Service

Commission

/s/ Dean L. Cooper

Dean L. Cooper MBE #36592
BRYDON, SWEARENGEN & ENGLAND P.C.
312 E. Capitol Avenue
P. O. Box 456
Jefferson City, MO 65102
(573) 635-7166
(573) 635-3847 facsimile
Email: dcooper@brydonlaw.com
Attorneys for Aquila, Inc.

/s/ Douglas E. Micheel

Douglas E. Micheel MBE #38371 Senior Public Counsel P.O. Box 7800, Suite 650 Jefferson City, MO 65102 (573) 751-5560 Telephone (573) 751-5562 (Fax)

Email: dmicheel@ded.state.mo.us

Attorney for the Office of the Public Counsel

/s/ Richard S. Brownlee

Richard S. Brownlee III MBE # 22422 221 Bolivar Street, Suite 300 P.O. Box 1069 Jefferson City, MO 65102

Tel: 573 636-8135 Fax: 573 636-4905

Email:

Certificate of Service

I hereby certify that copies of the foregoing have been mailed, hand-delivered, transmitted by facsimile or e-mailed to all counsel of record this Monday, September 16, 2002.

/s/ Robert V. Franson

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.1

SHEET NO. 32.1

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | SHEET NUMBER |
|--|---|
| TABLE OF CONTENTS | 32.1 |
| PURPOSE Program Provisions Program Evaluation | 32.3 32.3 32.3 |
| DEFINITIONS | 32.4 |
| PIPELINE CAPACITY RELEASE | 32.7 |
| RATE SCHEDULE SVTS Availability Service Considerations Monthly Charges Security General Rules, Regulations, Terms and Conditions Taxes Experimental School Aggregation Program | 32.8 32.8 32.8 32.9 32.9 32.9 32.9 |
| Reserved for Future Use Reserved for Future Use | 32.11 32.12 |
| NOMINATIONS | 32.13 |
| BALANCING | 32.14 |
| MANDATORY CHARGES Aggregation Charge Daily Balancing Charge Daily Out-of-Balance Charge Monthly Cash-Out Charge Line Loss Charge Penalties for Unauthorized Takes | 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 |
| OPTIONAL SERVICES Balancing Service Aggregated Pooling Service Billing Service | 32.16 32.16 32.16 32.16 |
| Reserved for Future Use | 32.17 |

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.2

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

SHEET NO. 32.2

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

| TERMS AND CONDITIONS | 32.18 |
|--|-------|
| Balancing | 32.18 |
| Billing | 32.18 |
| Curtailment/Interruption of Service | 32.18 |
| Delinquent Payment Penalty | 32.18 |
| Delivery Volume Requirement | 32.18 |
| Facility | 32.18 |
| Failure To Comply | 32.19 |
| Force Majeure | 32.19 |
| Gas Quality | 32.19 |
| Gas Supply | 32.19 |
| Joint Rate Transportation Service | 32.19 |
| Laws, Regulations, and Orders | 32.20 |
| Liability | 32.20 |
| Marketer Agreement | 32.20 |
| Measurement | 32.20 |
| Minimum Term | 32.20 |
| Nomination | 32.20 |
| Notices Required to Transport or Return to Sales Service | 32.20 |
| Operational Flow Order Penalty | 32.21 |
| Pipeline Charges | 32.21 |
| Recording and Telemetry Equipment | 32.21 |
| Service Agreement Required | 32.21 |
| Successors and Assigns | 32.21 |
| Termination of Participation | 32.22 |
| INTERSTATE PIPELINE SCHEDULING AND BALANCING CHARGES | 32.23 |
| Panhandle Eastern Pipeline Company | 32.23 |
| Williams Gas Pipelines - Central, Inc. | 32.24 |

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002 ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32,3 SHEET NO. 32,3

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

A. PURPOSE

The purpose of this program is to provide the Company's end-users additional flexibility in how they purchase and receive natural gas for their use. This program allows non-residential end-users the opportunity to purchase natural gas from a source other than the Company and make arrangements for the transportation of such natural gas on a firm and/or interruptible basis on the Company's distribution system.

- 1. Program Provisions. This program has the following major provisions:
- (a) Pipeline Capacity Assignment: The program contains provisions for the Company to assign its firm pipeline capacity to the aggregator or end user in order for the aggregator to provide firm gas service to its aggregated pool. The daily scheduling, monthly balancing and monthly cash out provisions set forth above essentially mirror the same requirements the Company is required to follow (or will be expected to follow) in taking service from the interstate pipelines, Panhandle Eastern Pipe Line Company (PEPL) and Williams Gas Pipelines-Central (Williams), serving the Company's Missouri systems.
- (b) Small and Large Volume Rate Schedules: End users with annual usage less than 150,000 Ccf qualify for small volume transportation service, and end users with greater usage qualify for the large volume transportation schedule. Different terms, charges and optional services apply to each service.
- (c) Aggregation Permitted. Under the terms of these tariff sheets, a non-residential end-user who desires to transport gas is permitted to combine its natural gas requirements with those other non-residential end-users in an aggregated pool for purposes of scheduling, nominations and gas purchasing.
- (d) Daily Scheduling: As a condition of forming aggregated pools, aggregators need to comply with the requirement to match, within a certain tolerance and on a daily basis, nominations and consumption. This requirement relates to the necessity for the utility to manage the gas delivered to it for consumption by end-users. The capability to closely monitor daily transportation activity is critical to ensure that the utility is able to facilitate transportation service for the benefit of aggregators and end-users while reliably maintaining service to its sales customers.
- (e) Monthly Balancing: In addition to matching nominations and consumption on a daily basis, aggregators are required, within a specific tolerance, to be "in balance" on a monthly basis.
- (f) Monthly Cashouts: The program provides a method each month for resolving on a cash basis the differences between nominations and consumption.
- 2. <u>Program Evaluation.</u> During the term of the program, Company shall file annual reports, beginning with an initial report to be filed in January, 2004 showing the following information:
 - (a) The number of aggregators actively forming aggregated pools on the Company's systems,
 - (b) The number of end-users electing to be served as part of aggregated pools,
 - (c) End-users requesting to leave aggregated pools and return to the Company's sales service, and
 - (d) The amount of interstate pipeline capacity assigned from Company to specific aggregators forming aggregated pools.
 - (e) Copies of all transportation contracts executed in the prior year.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.4 SHEET NO. 32.4

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

B. <u>DEFINITIONS</u>

AGGREGATION - The practice of combining the nominations and balancing of gas delivered to more than one end-user from receipt point(s) served by a common pipeline. Aggregation of end-users is allowed only on a common pipeline. To qualify for aggregation service, end-users must be served by a common pipeline in the same pipeline operating zone.

AGGREGATION POOL – A group of one or more end-users, with each end-use meter qualifying under the applicable rate schedule for transportation service. Any energy seller, supplier, marketer or broker that serves more than one end-user that is eligible to be pooled for the purpose of forming an aggregation pool will be deemed to be an aggregator, and will be required to execute a Marketer Agreement.

AGGREGATOR – An entity (such as an energy seller, marketer, supplier, or other entity) responsible for the aggregation of gas delivered to more than one end-user.

BALANCING - The effort to match the quantity of transport gas received by the Company for the account of an aggregator with the quantity of the gas delivered to end-user(s) for the account of that end-user.

CRITICAL DAY (EXTREME CONDITIONS) - Any day during which the Company and/or interstate pipeline service is limited due to capacity constraints, operational problems, or any other cause. Aggregator notification shall be as determined by the pipeline; no additional communication by Company shall be required.

CUSTOMER - An energy seller, marketer, aggregator, supplier, or end-user of transportation service.

DAILY NOMINATION REQUIREMENT - The quantity of gas required to be delivered to Company at receipt point(s) for the account of aggregator in order to meet: 1) aggregator's daily requirement for flowing gas (gas physically delivered to end-user(s)), 2) losses, and 3) correction of aggregator's out-of-balance condition existing at the end of the preceding gas day.

DAILY SCHEDULING TOLERANCE - The maximum quantity of gas at the end of any gas day, which Company will allow aggregator to be out-of-balance without additional charge. Aggregator's daily scheduling tolerance shall be determined as five percent (5%) of daily nominations.

DAY - See GAS DAY.

DELIVERIES - The quantity of gas delivered by Company to end-user(s) for the account of aggregator.

DELIVERY POINT - The location where the Company's gas distribution facilities are interconnected with the end-user's facilities. This location is where the aggregator and the Company have agreed that all or part of the receipts for the account of aggregator will be transported and delivered by the Company to the end-user for the account of aggregator.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.5 SHEET NO. 32.5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

END-USER - Any person, association, firm, public or private corporation, or any agency of the federal, state, or local government or other legal entity who physically accepts delivery from Company of gas transported hereunder.

ENERGY SELLER – Any person who uses, leases or controls the distribution system of a distributor or a political subdivision or any part thereof to sell energy services at retail within a political subdivision, other than a distributor or a political subdivision.

GAS DAY - The 24 hour period which begins at 9:00 a.m. Central Time and ends at 9:00 a.m. Central Time the following day.

JOINT SERVICE – A form of gas delivery or transportation service in which the customer is permitted to select and designate a portion of daily requirement as firm and/or interruptible. This capability is available only to customers with telemetry.

LINE LOSS - The quantity of gas used and/or lost as part of the Company's normal distribution system operation. Line loss charges will be the Company's system-wide Lost and Unaccounted (L&U) Account as computed in the Company's annual PGA and applied on a volumetric basis to the quantity of gas delivered to the end-user.

MARKETER AGREEMENT – An agreement entered into between Company and aggregator specifying the service(s) requested by aggregator, method of billing and term of agreement.

MAXIMUM DAILY QUANTITY (MDQ) - The amount of gas a customer is expected to consume on a peak day, calculated by dividing the volumes consumed by a particular customer during the highest historical peak month of usage for that customer in the last three years by twenty (20). Company will estimate a peak month for new customers. A Maximum Daily Quantity may also be established through direct measurement or other means (i.e., estimating the peak day requirements after installation of new processing equipment or more energy efficient heating systems) if approved by Company.

NOMINATION - The quantity of gas that aggregator causes to be delivered to Company at each Receipt Point for the account of aggregator during a gas day. The quantity nominated must be equalized as far as practicable over the twenty-four hour period and for the services provided hereunder is assumed to have been delivered to Company uniformly during each hour of the gas day.

OPERATIONAL BALANCING AGREEMENT - An agreement between the Company and aggregator which describes the manner in which differences between actual receipts into the Company's system and nominated quantities into Company's system will be resolved between the parties.

OPERATIONAL FLOW ORDER - A notice issued by the Company to aggregator(s) requiring the delivery of specified quantities of gas to Company for the account of aggregator at times deemed necessary by the Company to maintain system integrity and to assure continued service. An Operational Flow Order may be issued to the smallest affected area. For example, a single receipt point, receipt points on a pipeline, or the entire system. Notification shall be via Company's electronic bulletin board (http://www.gastrackonline.com). Any Operational Flow Order (OFO) declared by the interstate pipeline is also an OFO Day on Company's affected area, but aggregator notification shall come from the pipeline.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.6 SHEET NO. 32.6

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas

receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

OUT-OF-BALANCE - A condition where cumulative receipts fail to equal cumulative deliveries. A positive (excess) out-of-balance condition exists when receipts exceed deliveries. A negative (deficiency) out-of-balance condition exists when deliveries exceed receipts. When an aggregator is out-of-balance, the Company has either provided gas to the aggregator to meet an underage (deficiency), or stored gas for aggregator to meet an overage (excess).

OVERAGE - An out-of-balance condition where receipts exceed deliveries. This condition reflects the cumulative extent receipts exceed deliveries since receipts and deliveries were last in balance. A positive (excess) out-of-balance condition is considered an overage.

RECEIPTS - The quantity of gas actually delivered to Company for the account of aggregator at receipt point(s).

RECEIPT POINT - The location where Company physically receives gas delivered to Company for the account of aggregator. This location is the interconnection between the Company and the entity responsible for the delivery of aggregator-owned gas to the Company. The receipt point is usually physically located at the town border station, upstream of the delivery point. The receipt point must be a location physically connected by Company facilities to the delivery point. If the Company can, operationally, contractually, and without adversely affecting the service to its other end-users, permit aggregator to use a receipt point not physically connected through Company facilities to the delivery point(s). Company may waive the receipt point restriction.

RECORDING EQUIPMENT - Equipment which is capable of obtaining, accumulating, and storing data regarding gas flow for intervals equal to or less than twenty-four (24) hours in duration.

SHUTOFF - Service interruption initiated by Company, terminating service hereunder, to an aggregator and/or end-user as a result of failure of aggregator and/or end-user to pay Company for service or as a result of unsafe conditions.

TELEMETRY - Equipment capable of obtaining, accumulating, and transmitting real time data regarding the gas flow to a central location.

TRANSPORTATION SERVICE - The physical and/or contractual movement of aggregator-owned gas through the Company's distribution system from receipt point(s) to delivery point(s).

UNDERAGE - An out-of-balance condition where deliveries exceed receipts. This condition reflects the cumulative extent that deliveries exceed receipts since deliveries and receipts were last in balance. A negative (deficiency) out-of-balance condition is considered an underage.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.7 SHEET NO. 32.7

OHEET 140. 02.

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

C. PIPELINE CAPACITY RELEASE

The Company offers its end-users additional flexibility in how they purchase and receive gas for their use. End-users may purchase their gas directly from an energy seller, marketer, aggregator, supplier, or other entity and then, under the SVTS or LVTS rate schedules, decide which services will be used to bring the gas to their end-use location.

Consistent with the above and as a condition of customer being able to subscribe to Company's transportation rate schedules, customer agrees to accept pro-rata release of Company's pipeline capacity based on the firm peak day requirements for end-user's end use or for aggregator's end-users. The amount of pipeline capacity the end-user will be released will be calculated by determining the peak gas usage month that occurred within the past three (3) years for each of aggregator's end-users, then adding the quantity of gas consumed by each of aggregator's end-users in such peak month, and dividing that sum by 20.

The capacity will be released to the aggregator on a temporary recallable basis for up to twelve months for each end user at the Company's weighted average cost. Pipeline transportation cost shall be derived from the pipeline transportation contracts that serve a customer; only those contracts that provide service to a customer's service territory shall be considered when calculating cost. After the capacity is released, aggregators will deal directly with the interstate pipeline during the period of release on all matters concerning this capacity. In the event an end user changes marketers before the expiration of a pipeline capacity agreement, the end-user's capacity will revert to the Company for reassignment to the new aggregator or marketer.

If an end-user wishes to return to firm sales service, Company shall accept the end-user as a firm sales customer, provided the capacity needed to serve the customer also returns with the end-user.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.8

SHEET NO. 32.8

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas

receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

D. RATE SCHEDULE SVTS

- 1. Availability: Service under this rate schedule is available to Customers who cause gas to be delivered on a firm and/or interruptible basis to individually metered, non-residential end-users whose individual annual usage is anticipated not to exceed 150,000 Ccf. This service will be available in all of the Company's Missouri service territories.
- 2. Service Considerations: This service shall apply to small volume transportation service, which includes a level of firm and/or interruptible gas service. The interruptible gas is subject to interruption at any time upon order of the Company. Customers electing interruptible service must sign an affidavit confirming the customer has an alternate fuel capability or is willing to discontinue gas service during periods of curtailment. Customers must execute a written contract for transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule. Gas transportation agreements and applicable documents are available at the Company's electronic website, www.networks.aquila.com. . All small volume transportation customers must install telemetry equipment or purchase the Balancing Service provided herein. Customers must reimburse the Company for the cost incurred by Company to install telemetry equipment and for the cost of any other improvements made by Company in order to provide this service. Service is provided for a minimum of six (6) months.
- 3. Monthly Charges: End-user's monthly bill shall be determined as a sum of the following:

| Service Territory: | MPS-North | MPS-South | MPS-East |
|---|-----------------------------|-------------------------------|----------------------------|
| End-user Charge: | \$15.00 Per facility per | \$15.00 month for all serv | \$15.00 ice territories |
| <u>Delivery Charge</u> Usage (per Ccf) | | | |
| 1 st 600 | \$0.23908 | \$0.23908 | \$0.23908 |
| Next 800 | \$0.22108 | \$0.22108 | \$0.22108 |
| Next 1,000 | \$0.20305 | \$0.20305 | \$0.20305 |
| Excess | \$0.07546 | \$0.07546 | \$0.07546 |

L&U Charge: the Company's system-wide Lost and Unaccounted (L&U) Account as computed in the Company's annual PGA will be applied on a volumetric basis to the quantity of gas delivered to the end-user.

Interim Purchased Gas Adjustment Charges: End-users shall be charged the appropriate system's ACA, Refund, TOP and TC factors as listed on Company's sheet numbers 43, 44 or 44.1. New customers or customers electing transportation service shall be charged the appropriate ACA charges for a period of one year after changing service to this schedule. These charges shall terminate after a customer has been served under this schedule for one year.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Original

SHEET NO. 32.9 SHEET NO. 32.9

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

<u>Mandatory Charges:</u> Monthly bills to aggregators shall reflect the charges as described in Section E of this service schedule, including:

Aggregation Charge
Daily Balancing Charge
Daily Out-of-Balance Charge
Monthly Cash-out Charge
Line Loss Charge
Unauthorized Delivery Charge

Optional Services: Additional services may be selected, as described in Section I, including:

Daily Balancing Service Aggregation Pooling Service Billing Service

- 4. <u>Security:</u> Aggregator shall provide Company with security for aggregator's performance hereunder in the form of a letter of credit or a performance bond in the amount of \$250,000.00 no later than ten (10) days prior to the date gas first flows to one or more of aggregator's end-users. Company reserves the right to periodically review the sufficiency of said security and, if deemed necessary as a prudent business practice, may require an increase in such amount.
- 5. <u>General Rules, Regulations, Terms and Conditions</u>: Service hereunder is subject to Company's General Rules and Regulations and applicable transportation provisions on file with the Missouri Public Service Commission.
- 6. <u>Taxes</u>: Service received under this tariff shall be conducted through energy selfers who have received certification from the Missouri Public Service Commission pursuant to 4 CSR 240-45.010 in compliance with Sections 393.297 through 393.301, RSMo.
- 7. Experimental School Aggregation Program: Pursuant to Sec. 393.310.1 RSMo, the fee for aggregation and balancing services for schools aggregating gas requirements under this schedule shall be \$0.004 per Therm during the twelve (12) month period following the approval date of this schedule. After the initial twelve (12) months of this program, the charges described in paragraphs H and I will apply to all small volume customers, including schools. No telemetry shall be required unless a facility is expected to consume over 100,000 Therms annually. This experimental program shall be in effect from November 1, 2002 to June 30, 2005.
 - a. Reporting. The Company shall, no later than June 1 in each year of the experimental program, provide records of the revenues and expenses incurred as a result of this experimental program. These records shall be provided to the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission and the Office of the Public Counsel, and shall be categorized in sufficient detail to permit the parties to determine what under- or over-recovery of expenses may exist at that time, and to determine what changes in rates, if any, may be appropriate to prevent any harm to the groups identified in RSMo Sec. 393.310. The Commission may, no later than November 1st of each year of the experimental program, implement any adjustments in rates it deems appropriate to comply with RSMo. 393.310.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.10

SHEET NO. 32.10

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

- b. Annual Cost True-Up. Company shall file annually on or about November 1 of each year to receive Commission approval to recover costs incurred to implement this experimental program. This cost recovery application may include first year costs that exceed the \$0.04 per Therm limit contained in RSMo. 393.310, PGA-related costs and administrative costs incurred by the Company.
- c. Collection of Gross Receipts Taxes. The marketer or aggregator will collect gross receipts taxes applicable to the cost of gas purchased for end users. The marketer or aggregator may alternatively subscribe to Company's billing service, described in Section I.

3

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.11

SHEET NO. 32.11

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.12

SHEET NO. 32.12

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Original

SHEET NO. 32.13 SHEET NO. 32.13

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

F. NOMINATIONS

- 1. Requirements. Customers are required to nominate daily. Customers requesting volumes to flow on the first day of any month must contact Company's Gas Control Department via Company's Internet-enabled electronic bulletin board, known as Gas Track Online (http://www.gastrackonline.com), and inform them of the volumes to be transported by receipt point(s) and delivery point(s). First of the month nominations and daily nominations via the Internet are due by 11:30 a.m. Central Time one day before the gas flows. Intra-day nomination for the 2nd through the 31st days of a month will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. Central Time. A confirmed pipeline nomination will also be accepted on a best effort basis on the day of gas flow.
- 2. Special Requirements. All Small Volume sales customers switching to transportation service will be assigned a Maximum Daily Quantity (MDQ) Level, as defined herein. Under certain circumstances the Company may, at its option, require customers to deliver and confirm its MDQ to the LDC receipt point up to a cumulative 10 days (in addition to interstate pipeline OFO and critical days) during the months of November through March. If MDQ delivery does not occur, then customer must curtail to the level of their confirmed nomination. Confirmation occurs when Company receives confirmed nomination from the interstate pipeline. MDQ may be required if:
 - 1. The interstate pipeline calls a Critical Day Order.
 - 2. The interstate pipeline calls an Operational Flow Order,
 - 3. The Company calls a Critical Day Order.
 - 4. The Company calls an Operational Flow Order.

In (1) and (2) above, the Customer must, without notice from the Company, deliver its MDQ to the LDC receipt point. In (3) and (4) above, the Company will give the Customer 25 hours notice prior to the start of the gas day. If the Customer fails to deliver its MDQ as required in (1), (2), or (3), the Company shall assess a penalty to Customer for each Mcf that Customer fails to deliver in an amount equal to the highest daily penalty applicable to the Operational Flow Order or Critical Day, as defined by the interstate pipeline in its tariff. If Company has not called a Critical Day but has issued an Operational Flow Order (4), and customer fails to deliver its MDQ, then Company will assess a penalty to customer in an amount equal to that identified in Paragraph I for each Mcf that customer failed to deliver.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.14

SHEET NO. 32.14

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS Kansas City, Missouri For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

G. BALANCING

To assure system integrity, the customer is responsible for: 1) providing daily scheduling of deliveries which accurately reflect customer's expected consumption, and 2) balancing deliveries to Company' system with volumes consumed at the delivery points and adjusted for Lost and Unaccounted gas. Failure to fulfill these responsibilities will result in Customer incurring balancing and/or scheduling charges as described below.

- 1. <u>Daily Balancing Charges</u>. A daily charge shall apply to any aggregator or end user served through Panhandle Eastern Pipeline Company or any other pipeline that subsequently adopts daily scheduling charges, and whose out-of-balance condition exceeds the daily scheduling tolerance. This daily charge is applied to the daily quantities by which customer's out-of-balance condition exceeds customer's daily scheduling tolerance. Actual daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for customers with recording equipment or telemetry. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for customers without recording equipment or telemetry, or whether such equipment malfunctions. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be determined based on available data including nominated quantities, meter readings, customer load characteristic, actual weather conditions, and other information. This daily charge is accumulated and assessed monthly. This charge is in addition to the charges set forth in each of the company's transportation rate schedules. For each pipeline, the FERC approved charges apply. See Section K.
- 2. Monthly Imbalances. The difference between monthly confirmed nominated volumes and actual consumption will be charged to and/or credited to the Customer (cashed out) using the indices shown in Section K, plus pipeline fuel, pipeline capacity and commodity charges. In addition, the cash out price is tiered to encourage good performance and discourage supply price arbitrage using the LDC as a supply bank.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.15 **SHEET NO. 32.15**

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas

receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

H. MANDATORY CHARGES

The following charges shall apply to Customers taking service under the Company's transportation rate schedules:

- 1. Aggregation Charge: A monthly aggregation charge shall be charged per pool of end-users for the purpose of nominating and balancing transportation deliveries on a common pipeline in the same pipeline operating zone. This charge shall be \$0.004 for each Ccf delivered for the pool.
- 2. Daily Balancing Charge; A charge shall apply to any small volume Customer served through any pipeline that balances on a daily basis. Under this service, a small volume Customer is provided operating flexibility through balancing tolerances in excess of normal daily scheduling tolerances. The charge for this service shall be \$0.0075 per Ccf per month. Customers electing to purchase this service in lieu of telemetry shall be exempted from daily out-of-balance charges, except during a critical day or when an operational flow order is imposed. The revenues collected as a result of this balancing service shall be credited to the respective system's ACA accounts.
- 3. Daily Out-of-Balance Charge: A daily charge shall apply to any Customer served through ANR, PEPL or any other pipeline that subsequently adopts daily scheduling charges, and whose out-ofbalance condition exceeds the daily scheduling tolerance during a critical day or when an operational flow order is imposed. This daily charge is applied to the daily quantities by which Customer's out-of-balance condition exceeds Customer's daily scheduling tolerance. Actual daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for end-users with recording equipment or telemetry. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for end-users without recording equipment or telemetry, or where such equipment malfunctions. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be determined based on available data, including nominated quantities, meter readings, end-user load characteristics, actual weather conditions and other information.

On critical days or when operational flow orders have been declared, daily out-of-balance charges otherwise applicable shall be waived if Customer is in an overage condition.

On critical days or when operational flow orders have been declared, the daily scheduling charges will be applied according to the tables shown in Section K.

- 4. Monthly Cash-Out Charge: At the end of each calendar month, Customer is required to balance its receipts and deliveries. Any variance between Customer's receipts and deliveries will result in the "cash-out" of imbalance volumes. See Section K.
- 5. Line Loss Charge: Line loss charges will be the Company's system-wide Lost and Unaccounted (L&U) Account as computed in the Company's annual PGA, and applied on a volumetric basis to the quantity of gas delivered to the end-user.
- Penalties for Unauthorized Takes: If customer fails to curtail its use of gas hereunder when requested to do so by Company, customer shall be billed at the transportation charge plus the cost of gas Company secures for the customer, plus the greater of either the pipeline daily delivery variance charges or \$20 per Mcf, for gas used in excess of the volumes of gas to which customer is limited. Revenues related to unauthorized takes will be credited to the Company's PGA. Company may in addition disconnect customer's supply of gas if customer fails to curtail its use thereof when requested by Company to do so. Curtailment of transportation volumes will take place according to the priority class, which the end-user would have been assigned if it were purchasing gas from Company. During curtailment, the end-user is entitled to a credit equal to the difference between the volumes delivered to Company and those received by the end-user, adjusted for lost, unaccounted-for and company used gas.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Original

SHEET NO. 32.16 SHEET NO. 32.16

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

I. OPTIONAL SERVICES

The following optional services are available to transportation Customers, who may choose the services that best serve their needs. Aggregators shall designate on their Marketer Agreement which, if any of the following services they desire. All charges for Optional Services are in addition to the monthly charges in the Company's transportation rate schedule.

- 1. <u>Balancing Service</u>: Under this optional service, Customers are provided additional flexibility in being able to balance their receipts with deliveries on a monthly basis. Small Volume Customers may negotiate a tolerance window and various cash-out rates for overage and underage conditions. Customers who elect transportation service may purchase the service in lieu of meeting Company's Transportation Tariff requirements for the installation of telemetry and daily scheduling requirements. Customers choosing this balancing service must submit a daily nomination to Company for those days the service is used. The special requirements for nominations, found in Paragraph F, apply to this service. The cost of the service is 7.5¢ per Mcf transported on Company's system. Revenues collected from the provision of this service will be credited to the overall general system gas cost through Company' PGA mechanism. This monthly charge is in addition to the monthly charges set forth in Company's service rate schedules.
- 2. Aggregation Pooling Service: A Customer may combine a group of end-users situated behind multiple town border stations (TBS) and served by a common pipeline with the same balancing provisions and the same interstate pipeline operational zone. Large volume and small volume end users with telemetry may be aggregated into common pools; small volume customers that purchase the Balancing Service cannot be aggregated with customers on telemetry. If a Marketer purchases this aggregation service, the aggregated group will be considered as one Customer for purposes of calculating the daily scheduling penalties and monthly imbalances, i.e., individual Customer nominations and consumption will be summed and treated as if they were one Customer. This does not include aggregation of fixed costs or customer charges. The cost of this aggregation service is \$0.04 per Mcf of gas delivered to the aggregated group. Revenues received from this service shall be credited to the Company's PGA mechanism. If the Customer purchases this service, the aggregated pools will be considered as one aggregated pool for the purposes of calculating daily out-of-balance charges; however, during Critical and OFO Days nominating and balancing will be required by the affected receipt and delivery points.
- 3. <u>Billing Service</u>: Company will provide an integrated billing service for aggregator for a monthly fee equal to \$1.00 multiplied by each end-user service point.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.17

SHEET NO. 32.17

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

RESERVED FOR FUTURE USE

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.18

SHEET NO. 32,18

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

J. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following terms and conditions shall apply to aggregators, and end-users where applicable, taking service under Company's applicable rate schedule:

- 1. <u>Balancing</u>: Customer shall have the obligation to balance on both a daily <u>and</u> monthly basis, gas receipts (transportation gas delivered to Company at the receipt point), with thermally equivalent gas deliveries (transportation gas delivered by Company to end user(s) at the delivery point(s)). The difference between cumulative receipts and cumulative deliveries is considered an out-of-balance condition. Upon termination of service hereunder, either the Customer shall purchase sufficient quantities of gas to satisfy any negative out-of-balance condition or the Company shall purchase Customer's positive out-of-balance quantities. These purchases shall be completed in accordance with the provisions of Company's monthly cash-out provisions. In addition, Customer shall be responsible for any other applicable charge(s) set forth in Company's rate schedules. Delivery from systems with a single source of gas supply will use the transporting entity's statement as to volumes and heating value shall be taken as conclusive. Delivery from systems with multiple sources of gas supply shall be determined based on the heating value of the gas delivered to the end-user to determine the requirement for thermal balancing.
- 2. <u>Billing</u>: The order of gas delivery for purposes of billing calculations will initially be to utilize Customer-owned gas, including correction of any imbalance conditions and then utilize sales gas based on Company's applicable tariffs.
- 3. <u>Curtailment/Interruption of Service</u>: Transportation service provided by Company is based on Company's best efforts to deliver for the account of Customer, gas received for the account of the Customer. In the event of force majeure or system capacity limitations, it may be necessary to interrupt deliveries from time to time. If transportation service interruption or curtailment is required, Company shall endeavor to curtail deliveries on the affected parts of its system in the following order: Large Volume, General Service and Residential

If Company is required to curtail transportation service, then such interruptions or curtailments shall be governed by Company's curtailment provisions associated with sales gas service, which are contained in Section 3.07 of Company's Rules and Regulations — Gas.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herein, Company may fully or partially curtail service to transportation service end-users when, in Company's opinion, curtailment or interruption is necessary to protect the delivery of gas to general system customers with higher priority uses, or to protect the integrity of its system. Company shall allocate, as equitably as practicable, the capacity that is available, taking into consideration priority of use or other factors it deems necessary to ensure public health and safety.

- 4. <u>Delinquent Payment Penalty</u>: A late payment charge in an amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the delinquent amount owed for current service will be added to the bill if payment is not received on or before the net due date stated on the bill. The net due date shall be the twenty-first (21st) day after the date of billing.
- 5. <u>Facility</u>: Shall include all meters serving buildings under common ownership behind the same town border station.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.19

SHEET NO. 32.19

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

- Delivery Volume Requirement: The Company is not required to deliver volumes of gas in excess of receipts.
- 7. <u>Failure to Comply</u>: If aggregator or end-user fail to comply with or perform any of the obligations of its part, the Company shall have the right to give end-user written notice of the Company's intention to terminate the transportation service on account of such failure. The Company shall then have the right to terminate such transportation service after the expiration of five days after giving said notice, unless the aggregator or end-user shall make good such failure. Termination of such transportation service for any such cause shall be a cumulative remedy as to the Company, and shall not release the aggregator or end-user from its obligation to make payment of any amount or amounts due or to become due from the aggregator or end-user to the Company under the applicable schedule. In order to resume transportation service after termination of service hereunder, it shall be necessary for end-user to reapply for service.
- 8. Force Majeure: The term "force majeure" as employed herein shall mean acts and events not within the control of the party claiming suspension and shall include acts of God, strikes, lockouts, material or equipment or labor shortages, wars, riots, insurrections, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, storms, floods, washouts, arrests and restraints of rulers and peoples, interruptions by government or court orders, present or future orders of any regulatory body having proper jurisdiction, civil disturbances, explosions, breakage or accident to machinery or lines of pipes, freezing of wells or pipelines, and any other cause, whether of the kind herein enumerated or otherwise, not within the control of the party claiming suspension and which, by the exercise of due diligence, such party is unable to overcome. If either the Company, aggregator or end-user is rendered unable by force majeure to wholly or in part carry out its obligations under the provisions of any rate schedule, the obligations of the party affected by such force majeure, other than the obligation to make payments there under, shall be suspended during the continuance of any inability so caused but for no longer period; and such cause shall, in so far as possible, be remedied with all reasonable dispatch. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the service provided by Company hereunder is limited to the transportation of aggregator or end-user owned gas received by the Company for the account of aggregator or end-user. In the event of a force majeure condition that restricts or limits aggregator's or end-user's ability to cause to be delivered to Company gas for the account of the aggregator or end-user, Company is under no obligation to deliver gas to aggregator or end-user. Company is under no obligation to deliver gas to the aggregator or end-user for the account of aggregator or end-user that has not been received by the Company for the account of aggregator or end-user.
- 9. <u>Gas Quality</u>: All end-user-owned gas transported hereunder shall be of commercial quality. If the gas tendered for transportation is not of commercial quality or is gas which will adversely impact the gas stream of Company, said gas shall not be transported.
- 10. <u>Gas Supply</u>: Customer shall arrange for the purchase of gas other than Company's supply and for the delivery of such gas to a Company receipt point(s). End-user shall execute a written End-User Verification Form for transportation services pursuant to the applicable rate schedule containing such terms and conditions as may be reasonably required.
- 11. <u>Joint Rate Transportation Service</u>: Refers to the purchase of gas transportation service, which includes a level of firm and interruptible interstate pipeline capacity. Transportation service will not commence until the Customer files with the Company a completed Service Request Form and all other applicable documentation. Company shall be deemed to have title to transportation gas, as necessary, to arrange interstate pipeline transportation to Company' system.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.20 SHEET NO. 32.20

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

- 12. <u>Laws, Regulations, and Orders</u>: All agreements and the respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto are subject to all present and future valid laws, orders, rules, and regulations of any legislative body, or duly constituted authority now or hereafter having jurisdiction and shall be varied and amended to comply with or conform to any valid rule, regulation, order, or direction of any board, tribunal, or administrative agency with jurisdiction that affects any of the provisions of the agreement.
- 13. <u>Liability</u>: Gas shall be and shall remain the property of the aggregator or end-user while being transported and delivered by the Company. The Company shall not be liable to the aggregator or end-user for any loss arising from or out of gas transportation service while in the Company's system or for any other cause, except for gross or willful negligence of the Company's own employees. The Company reserves the right to commingle gas of the aggregator or end-user with other gas supplies. The aggregator or end-user shall be responsible for determining the extent of and maintaining all insurance it deems necessary to protect its property interest in such gas before, during, and after receipt by the Company.
- 14. <u>Marketer Agreement</u>: Each prospective aggregator is required to execute a Marketer Agreement, which shall specify the service(s) requested by aggregator, the method under which aggregator elects to be billed, and the term of the agreement. Regardless of billing arrangements elected, the aggregator shall be responsible for payment for all service(s) provided.
- 15. Measurement: All transport gas shall be measured on a volumetric basis. Measurement shall be based on available information regarding volumes received and delivered, pressure and temperature conditions, and energy content of the gas stream. Company shall determine the measurement equipment required to determine the receipts and deliveries of end-user owned gas transported hereunder.
- 16. <u>Minimum Term</u>: The minimum term of service shall be 6 months for small volume end users and one year for large volume service. The Company, at its sole discretion, may allow a term less than the one (1) year or six (6) month minimums.
- 17. Nomination: Customers are required to nominate daily. Customers requesting volumes to flow on the first day of any month must contact Company's Gas Control Department via Company's Internet-enabled electronic bulletin board, known as Gas Track Online (http://www.gastrackonline.com), and inform them of the volumes to be transported by receipt point(s) and delivery point(s). First of the month nominations and daily nominations via the Internet are due by 11:30 a.m. Central Time one day before the gas flows. Intra-day nomination for the 2nd through the 31st days of a month will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. Central Time. A confirmed pipeline nomination will also be accepted on a best effort basis on the day of gas flow. Any nomination that may take unfair advantage of any tariff provision may be rejected or changed by the Company.
- 18. Notices Required to Transport or Return to Sales Service: Customers shall notify Company a minimum of fourteen (14) days prior to the beginning of the end-user's meter-reading cycle of their intent to begin or change service under the applicable transportation rate schedule through the filing of an End-User Verification Form or addendum thereto with Company. Any addition, deletion or change in end-user transportation service shall occur at the start of the end-user's billing cycle. Notification shall include aggregator and end-user names and addresses; receipt and delivery point(s) to be nominated; service(s) to be subscribed for; billing information; and other information

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

For: All communities and rural areas

SHEET NO. 32.21

SHEET NO. 32.21

Original

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS Kansas City, Missouri receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

as Company or aggregator may deem appropriate. Transportation service will not commence until end-user has executed a written End-User Verification Form with the Company. Aggregators who notify Company on behalf of end-users of their intent to provide transportation service to end-user without end-user's approval shall pay a penalty of \$100 per end-user occurrence. Repeated occurrences by aggregator will result in aggregator not being permitted to continue transportation service. Any energy seller, supplier, marketer or broker that serves more than one end-user that is eligible to be pooled for the purpose of forming an aggregation pool will be deemed to be an aggregator, and will be required to execute a Marketer Agreement

- Operational Flow Order Penalty: Aggregators who fail to deliver to Company for the account of enduser(s) specified operational flow ordered quantities of gas shall be billed appropriate "Unauthorized Delivery" charges. Aggregators who repeatedly fail to deliver to Company specified operational flow order quantities of gas will not be permitted to continue transportation service.
- 20. Pipeline Charges. Any specific charges that Company incurs from the pipeline on behalf of customer will be passed through to that customer. Such charges include but are not limited to those that may be imposed by an applicable pipeline as set forth in paragraphs H and I.
- 21. Recording and Telemetry Equipment: Company shall notify end-users if existing equipment is not sufficient to measure service under the applicable rate schedule. If so, Company may install such equipment as it deems necessary. Company shall be allowed access for maintaining and operating such equipment. End-user shall be responsible for the costs associated with the Company acquiring and installing recording and/or telemetry equipment at the delivery point. When telemetry equipment is installed, the end-user will be required to provide telephone or other interfaces agreed to by the Company along with electrical connections available at the meter location. If recording and/or telemetry equipment is deemed necessary, but the end-user is unwilling or unable to pay for the cost of such equipment, then the end-user may return to sales service, provided all other requirements of Section 18 have been met. All Small Volume transportation customers must have Company install telemetry equipment or purchase the Balancing Service provided in Section J.1 herein. Customers must reimburse the Company for the cost incurred by Company to install telemetry equipment and for the cost of any other improvements made by Company in order to provide this transportation service. Customer shall also provide telephonic access and service to this telemetry equipment. The Company will offer financing for periods up to 90 days interest free. The Company will offer financing with interest to a customer to pay for the installation of telemetry equipment for a period of more than 90 days but not more than 12 consecutive months on a non-regulated basis. The telemetry equipment and any other improvements made by the Company shall remain the property of the Company, and will be maintained by the Company.
- 22. Service Agreement Required: Customer shall execute a written contract for transportation service containing such terms and conditions as Company reasonably requires. Gas transportation agreements and applicable documents are available at the Company's electronic website, www.networks.aguila.com. The Company will provide a written copy of the agreements if requested by the customer.
- 23. Successors and Assigns: Any party which shall succeed by purchase, merger, or consolidation, in whole or in part, to the interests of any aggregator or end-user, shall be subject to the obligations of its predecessor in title under an agreement. No other assignment of an agreement or any of the rights or obligations hereunder shall be made unless there first shall have been obtained the consent thereto of the non-assigning party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any party may assign its respective right, title, and interest in and to under an agreement to a trustee or

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.22

SHEET NO. 32.22

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

trustees, individual or corporate, as security for bonds or other obligations or securities without the necessity of any such assignee becoming in any respect obligated to perform the obligation of the assignor under an agreement and, if any such trustee be a corporation, without its being required to qualify to do business in any state in which performance of an agreement may occur.

24. <u>Termination of Participation</u>: End-Users shall notify Company whenever an end-user ceases to be a part of the aggregator's pool. Termination of participation in an aggregator's pool by an end-user, whether by choice of aggregator or end-user, may necessitate a determination by Company of the amount of capacity needed to serve the end-user. Capacity initially assigned and necessary to service end-user shall remain with the end-user. End-users that choose service from another aggregator must notify Company with a signed End-User Verification Form. Forms are available from aggregators or the Company via GasTrack Online. Notification is required at least fourteen (14) days prior to the nomination deadline for the first day of the end-user's billing cycle. If such notification is not provided within said time frame, then service from the original aggregator shall not terminate until the first day of the Company billing cycle for such end-user which begins at least thirty (30) days after receipt of the End-User Verification Form by the Company.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002 ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.23 SHEET NO. 32.23

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

K. INTERSTATE PIPELINE SCHEDULING AND BALANCING CHARGES

- 1. Panhandle Eastern Pipeline Company
 - a. PEPL Daily Balancing Penalties
 - i. Daily Imbalance Tolerance 4%
 - ii. Monthly Imbalance Tolerance 2%
 - iii. Penalties \$0,2860 per Mcf plus 3.38% fuel for each Mcf outside tolerance
 - b. PEPL OFO Penalties The greater of 2 times the highest gas price published in Gas Daily for Citygate, Pooling Point Prices "Chicago LDCs" or for Citygate, Pooling Point Prices "Mich.-Mich Con," whichever is greater for the day Overrun Penalties are incurred, or the following:

| <u>Overrun</u> | Rates per Dth |
|----------------|---------------|
| 0%-5% | \$15.00 |
| >5%-10% | \$25.00 |
| >10%-15% | \$50.00 |
| >15%-50% | \$100.00 |
| >50% | \$200.00 |

c. PEPL Monthly Imbalance Cash Out Tolerance Bands and Example

| | Receipts > Deliveries | Deliveries > Receipts |
|-----------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| Imbalance Level | Due Company | Due Customer |
| 0% - 5% | Spot x 90% | Spot x 110% |
| >5% - 10% | Spot x 80% | Spot x 120% |
| >10% - 15% | Spot x 70% | Spot x 130% |
| >15% - 20% | Spot x 60% | Spot x 140% |
| >20% | Spot x 50% | Spot x 150% |
| | | |

The "spot" market price shall equal the average of the Kansas/Oklahoma Field Zone Spot Price for gas delivered to PEPL contained in the first issue of Natural Gas Week.

Example:

If the nominated volume was 100 Mcf and the actual consumption was 130 Mcf, there is an imbalance of 30 Mcf due Company. The transportation customer would owe Company the following amount using the above hypothetical Spot market price of \$2.22: (*)

| 10 Mcf at \$2.22 x 110% | 24.42 |
|-------------------------|---------|
| 10 Mcf at \$2.22 x 120% | 26.64 |
| 10 Mcf at \$2.22 x 130% | 28.86 |
| | \$70.02 |

(*) These hypothetical prices are used for illustration purposes only.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-MPS

Kansas City, Missouri

Original

SHEET NO. 32.24

SHEET NO. 32.24

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

- 2. Williams Gas Pipelines Central, Inc.
 - a. WGPC Balancing Penalties
 - i. Daily Imbalance Tolerance Not applicable
 - ii. Monthly Imbalance Tolerance 10%
 - iii. Penalties
 - The greater of \$10 or 5 times the average Gas Daily Index for Williams for each day for which daily balancing is in effect for each Dth of over-deliveries in excess of 3% through 10% of authorized delivery levels or under-receipts in excess of 5% through 10% of confirmed nominations
 - The greater of \$20 or 10 times the average Gas Daily Index for Williams for each day for which daily balancing is in effect for each Dth of over-deliveries or under-receipts in excess of 10% of authorized delivery levels (for over-deliveries) or confirmed nominations (for under-receipts).
 - iv. Operational Flow Order Days The greater of \$10 or 5 times t he average Gas Daily Index for Williams for the days of noncompliance.

| | Receipts > Deliveries | Deliveries > Receipts |
|------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| <u>Imbalance Level</u> | <u>Due Company</u> | Due Customer |
| Up to 10% or 1,000 Dth | N/A | N/A |
| 10% but less than 15% | Spot x 70% | Spot x 130% |
| 15% but less than 20% | Spot x 60% | Spot x 140% |
| 20% or higher | Spot x 50% | Spot x 150% |

The "spot" market price shall equal the Inside FERC Report for Williams.

Example:

If the nominated volume was 100 Mcf and the actual consumption was 130 Mcf, there is an imbalance of 30 Mcf due Company. The transportation customer would owe Company the following amount using the above hypothetical Spot market price of \$2.22: (*)

| 10 Mcf at \$2.22 x 0% | 0.00 |
|-------------------------|---------|
| 5 Mcf at \$2.22 x 130% | 14.43 |
| 5 Mcf at \$2.22 x 140% | 15.54 |
| 10 Mcf at \$2.22 x 150% | 33.30 |
| | \$63.27 |

(*) These hypothetical prices are used for illustration purposes only.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.1

SHEET NO. 32.1

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | SHEET NUMBER |
|--|---|
| TABLE OF CONTENTS | 32.1 |
| PURPOSE Program Provisions Program Evaluation | 32.3 32.3 32.3 |
| DEFINITIONS | 32.4 |
| PIPELINE CAPACITY RELEASE | 32.7 |
| RATE SCHEDULE SVTS Availability Service Considerations Monthly Charges Security General Rules, Regulations, Terms and Conditions Taxes Experimental School Aggregation Program | 32.8 32.8 32.8 32.9 32.9 32.9 32.9 |
| Reserved for Future Use Reserved for Future Use NOMINATIONS | 32.11 32.12 32.13 |
| BALANCING | 32.14 |
| MANDATORY CHARGES Aggregation Charge Daily Balancing Charge Daily Out-of-Balance Charge Monthly Cash-Out Charge Line Loss Charge Penalties for Unauthorized Takes | 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 32.15 |
| OPTIONAL SERVICES Balancing Service Aggregated Pooling Service Billing Service Reserved for Future Use | 32.16 32.16 32.16 32.16 32.17 |

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas Ćity, Missouri

Original

SHEET NO. 32.2

SHEET NO. 32.2

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

| TERMS AND CONDITIONS | 32.18 |
|--|----------------|
| Balancing | 32.18 |
| | 32.18 |
| Billing Contailment/Interruption of Service | 32.18 |
| Curtailment/Interruption of Service | 32.18 32.18 |
| Delinquent Payment Penalty | 32.18 |
| Delivery Volume Requirement | |
| Facility | 32.18 |
| Failure To Comply | 32.19 |
| Force Majeure | 32.19 |
| Gas Quality | 32.19 |
| Gas Supply | 32.19 |
| Joint Rate Transportation Service | 32.19 |
| Laws, Regulations, and Orders | 32.20 |
| Liability | 32.20 |
| Marketer Agreement | 32.20 |
| Measurement | 32.20 |
| Minimum Term | 32.20 |
| Nomination | 32.20 |
| Notices Required to Transport or Return to Sales Service | 32.20 |
| Operational Flow Order Penalty | 32.21 |
| Pipeline Charges | 32.21 |
| Recording and Telemetry Equipment | 32.21 |
| Service Agreement Required | 32.21 |
| Successors and Assigns | 32.21 |
| Termination of Participation | 32.22 |
| rentilination of Farticipation | 32.22 |
| INTERSTATE PIPELINE SCHEDULING AND BALANCING CHARGES | 32.23 |
| ANR Pipeline Company | 32.23 |
| | |

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.3 SHEET NO. 32.3

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

S TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

A. PURPOSE

The purpose of this program is to provide the Company's end-users additional flexibility in how they purchase and receive natural gas for their use. This program allows non-residential end-users the opportunity to purchase natural gas from a source other than the Company and make arrangements for the transportation of such natural gas on a firm and/or interruptible basis on the Company's distribution system.

- 1. Program Provisions. This program has the following major provisions:
- (a) Pipeline Capacity Assignment: The program contains provisions for the Company to assign its firm pipeline capacity to the aggregator or end user in order for the aggregator to provide firm gas service to its aggregated pool. The daily scheduling, monthly balancing and monthly cash out provisions set forth above essentially mirror the same requirements the Company is required to follow (or will be expected to follow) in taking service from the interstate pipeline ANR Pipeline Company (ANR) serving the Company's Missouri system.
- (b) Small and Large Volume Rate Schedules: End users with annual usage less than 150,000 Ccf qualify for small volume transportation service, and end users with greater usage qualify for the large volume transportation schedule. Different terms, charges and optional services apply to each service.
- (c) Aggregation Permitted. Under the terms of these tariff sheets, a non-residential end-user who desires to transport gas is permitted to combine its natural gas requirements with those other non-residential end-users in an aggregated pool for purposes of scheduling, nominations and gas purchasing.
- (d) Daily Scheduling: As a condition of forming aggregated pools, aggregators need to comply with the requirement to match, within a certain tolerance and on a daily basis, nominations and consumption. This requirement relates to the necessity for the utility to manage the gas delivered to it for consumption by end-users. The capability to closely monitor daily transportation activity is critical to ensure that the utility is able to facilitate transportation service for the benefit of aggregators and end-users while reliably maintaining service to its sales customers.
- (e) Monthly Balancing: In addition to matching nominations and consumption on a daily basis, aggregators are required, within a specific tolerance, to be "in balance" on a monthly basis.
- (f) Monthly Cashouts: The program provides a method each month for resolving on a cash basis the differences between nominations and consumption.
- 2. <u>Program Evaluation.</u> During the term of the program, Company shall file annual reports, beginning with an initial report to be filed in January, 2004 showing the following information:
 - (a) The number of aggregators actively forming aggregated pools on the Company's systems,
 - (b) The number of end-users electing to be served as part of aggregated pools,
 - (c) End-users requesting to leave aggregated pools and return to the Company's sales service, and
 - (d) The amount of interstate pipeline capacity assigned from Company to specific aggregators forming aggregated pools.
 - (e) Copies of all transportation contracts executed in the prior year.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.4 SHEET NO. 32.4

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

B. DEFINITIONS

AGGREGATION - The practice of combining the nominations and balancing of gas delivered to more than one end-user from receipt point(s) served by a common pipeline. Aggregation of end-users is allowed only on a common pipeline. To qualify for aggregation service, end-users must be served by a common pipeline in the same pipeline operating zone.

AGGREGATION POOL – A group of one or more end-users, with each end-use meter qualifying under the applicable rate schedule for transportation service. Any energy seller, supplier, marketer or broker that serves more than one end-user that is eligible to be pooled for the purpose of forming an aggregation pool will be deemed to be an aggregator, and will be required to execute a Marketer Agreement.

AGGREGATOR – An entity (such as an energy seller, marketer, supplier, or other entity) responsible for the aggregation of gas delivered to more than one end-user.

BALANCING - The effort to match the quantity of transport gas received by the Company for the account of an aggregator with the quantity of the gas delivered to end-user(s) for the account of that end-user.

CRITICAL DAY (EXTREME CONDITIONS) - Any day during which the Company and/or interstate pipeline service is limited due to capacity constraints, operational problems, or any other cause. Aggregator notification shall be as determined by the pipeline; no additional communication by Company shall be required.

CUSTOMER - An energy seller, marketer, aggregator, supplier, or end-user of transportation service.

DAILY NOMINATION REQUIREMENT - The quantity of gas required to be delivered to Company at receipt point(s) for the account of aggregator in order to meet: 1) aggregator's daily requirement for flowing gas (gas physically delivered to end-user(s)), 2) losses, and 3) correction of aggregator's out-of-balance condition existing at the end of the preceding gas day.

DAILY SCHEDULING TOLERANCE - The maximum quantity of gas at the end of any gas day, which Company will allow aggregator to be out-of-balance without additional charge. Aggregator's daily scheduling tolerance shall be determined as five percent (5%) of daily nominations.

DAY - See GAS DAY.

DELIVERIES - The quantity of gas delivered by Company to end-user(s) for the account of aggregator.

DELIVERY POINT - The location where the Company's gas distribution facilities are interconnected with the end-user's facilities. This location is where the aggregator and the Company have agreed that all or part of the receipts for the account of aggregator will be transported and delivered by the Company to the end-user for the account of aggregator.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002 ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

MO. No. 5

SHEET NO. 32.5 SHEET NO. 32.5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

Original

For:

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

END-USER - Any person, association, firm, public or private corporation, or any agency of the federal, state, or local government or other legal entity who physically accepts delivery from Company of gas transported hereunder.

ENERGY SELLER – Any person who uses, leases or controls the distribution system of a distributor or a political subdivision or any part thereof to sell energy services at retail within a political subdivision, other than a distributor or a political subdivision.

GAS DAY - The 24 hour period which begins at 9:00 a.m. Central Time and ends at 9:00 a.m. Central Time the following day.

JOINT SERVICE – A form of gas delivery or transportation service in which the customer is permitted to select and designate a portion of daily requirement as firm and/or interruptible. This capability is available only to customers with telemetry.

LINE LOSS - The quantity of gas used and/or lost as part of the Company's normal distribution system operation. Line loss charges will be the Company's system-wide Lost and Unaccounted (L&U) Account as computed in the Company's annual PGA and applied on a volumetric basis to the quantity of gas delivered to the end-user.

MARKETER AGREEMENT – An agreement entered into between Company and aggregator specifying the service(s) requested by aggregator, method of billing and term of agreement.

MAXIMUM DAILY QUANTITY (MDQ) - The amount of gas a customer is expected to consume on a peak day, calculated by dividing the volumes consumed by a particular customer during the highest historical peak month of usage for that customer in the last three years by twenty (20). Company will estimate a peak month for new customers. A Maximum Daily Quantity may also be established through direct measurement or other means (i.e., estimating the peak day requirements after installation of new processing equipment or more energy efficient heating systems) if approved by Company.

NOMINATION - The quantity of gas that aggregator causes to be delivered to Company at each Receipt Point for the account of aggregator during a gas day. The quantity nominated must be equalized as far as practicable over the twenty-four hour period and, for the services provided hereunder, is assumed to have been delivered to Company uniformly during each hour of the gas day.

OPERATIONAL BALANCING AGREEMENT - An agreement between the Company and aggregator which describes the manner in which differences between actual receipts into the Company's system and nominated quantities into Company's system will be resolved between the parties.

OPERATIONAL FLOW ORDER - A notice issued by the Company to aggregator(s) requiring the delivery of specified quantities of gas to Company for the account of aggregator at times deemed necessary by the Company to maintain system integrity and to assure continued service. An Operational Flow Order may be issued to the smallest affected area. For example, a single receipt point, receipt points on a pipeline, or the entire system. Notification shall be via Company's electronic bulletin board (http://www.gastrackonline.com). Any Operational Flow Order (OFO) declared by the interstate pipeline is also an OFO Day on Company's affected area, but aggregator notification shall come from the pipeline.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.6

SHEET NO. 32.6

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All co

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

OUT-OF-BALANCE - A condition where cumulative receipts fail to equal cumulative deliveries. A positive (excess) out-of-balance condition exists when receipts exceed deliveries. A negative (deficiency) out-of-balance condition exists when deliveries exceed receipts. When an aggregator is out-of-balance, the Company has either provided gas to the aggregator to meet an underage (deficiency), or stored gas for aggregator to meet an overage (excess).

OVERAGE - An out-of-balance condition where receipts exceed deliveries. This condition reflects the cumulative extent receipts exceed deliveries since receipts and deliveries were last in balance. A positive (excess) out-of-balance condition is considered an overage.

RECEIPTS - The quantity of gas actually delivered to Company for the account of aggregator at receipt point(s).

RECEIPT POINT - The location where Company physically receives gas delivered to Company for the account of aggregator. This location is the interconnection between the Company and the entity responsible for the delivery of aggregator-owned gas to the Company. The receipt point is usually physically located at the town border station, upstream of the delivery point. The receipt point must be a location physically connected by Company facilities to the delivery point. If the Company can, operationally, contractually, and without adversely affecting the service to its other end-users, permit aggregator to use a receipt point not physically connected through Company facilities to the delivery point(s), Company may waive the receipt point restriction.

RECORDING EQUIPMENT - Equipment which is capable of obtaining, accumulating, and storing data regarding gas flow for intervals equal to or less than twenty-four (24) hours in duration.

SHUTOFF - Service interruption initiated by Company, terminating service hereunder, to an aggregator and/or end-user as a result of failure of aggregator and/or end-user to pay Company for service or as a result of unsafe conditions.

TELEMETRY - Equipment capable of obtaining, accumulating, and transmitting real time data regarding the gas flow to a central location.

TRANSPORTATION SERVICE - The physical and/or contractual movement of aggregator-owned gas through the Company's distribution system from receipt point(s) to delivery point(s).

UNDERAGE - An out-of-balance condition where deliveries exceed receipts. This condition reflects the cumulative extent that deliveries exceed receipts since deliveries and receipts were last in balance. A negative (deficiency) out-of-balance condition is considered an underage.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

Original

SHEET NO. 32.7 SHEET NO. 32.7

For: All communities and rural areas

receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

C. PIPELINE CAPACITY RELEASE

The Company offers its end-users additional flexibility in how they purchase and receive gas for their use. End-users may purchase their gas directly from an energy seller, marketer, aggregator, supplier, or other entity and then, under the SVTS or LVTS rate schedules, decide which services will be used to bring the gas to their end-use location.

Consistent with the above and as a condition of customer being able to subscribe to Company's transportation rate schedules, customer agrees to accept release of Company's pipeline capacity based on the firm peak day requirements for end-user's end use or for aggregator's end-users. The amount of pipeline capacity the end-user will be released will be calculated by determining the peak gas usage month that occurred within the past three (3) years for each of aggregator's end-users, then adding the quantity of gas consumed by each of aggregator's end-users in such peak month, and dividing that sum by 20.

The capacity will be released to the aggregator on a temporary recallable basis for up to twelve months for each end user, for the remaining contract term, at the Company's weighted average cost. Pipeline transportation cost shall be derived from the pipeline transportation contracts that serve a customer; only those contracts that provide service to a customer's service territory shall be considered when calculating cost. After the capacity is released, aggregators will deal directly with the interstate pipeline during the period of release on all matters concerning this capacity. In the event an end user changes marketers before the expiration of a pipeline capacity agreement, the end-user's capacity will revert to the Company for reassignment to the new aggregator or marketer.

If an end-user wishes to return to firm sales service, Company shall accept the end-user as a firm sales customer, provided the capacity needed to serve the customer also returns with the end-user.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.8

SHEET NO. 32.8

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

D. RATE SCHEDULE SVTS

- 1. Availability: Service under this rate schedule is available to Customers who cause gas to be delivered on a firm and/or interruptible basis to individually metered, non-residential end-users whose individual annual usage is anticipated not to exceed 150,000 Ccf. This service will be available in all of the Company's Missouri service territories.
- 2. Service Considerations: This service shall apply to small volume transportation service, which includes a level of firm and/or interruptible gas service. The interruptible gas is subject to interruption at any time upon order of the Company. Customers electing interruptible service must sign an affidavit confirming the customer has an alternate fuel capability or is willing to discontinue gas service during periods of curtailment. Customers must execute a written contract for transportation service pursuant to this rate schedule. Gas transportation agreements and applicable documents are available at the Company's electronic website, www.networks.aquila.com. . All small volume transportation customers must install telemetry equipment or purchase the Balancing Service provided herein. Customers must reimburse the Company for the cost incurred by Company to install telemetry equipment and for the cost of any other improvements made by Company in order to provide this service. Service is provided for a minimum of six (6) months.
- Monthly Charges: End-user's monthly bill shall be determined as a sum of the following:

| Service Territory: | SJLP-920 | SJLP-921 |
|--------------------|----------|----------|
| End-user Charge: | \$12.31 | \$9.39 |

Delivery Charge

Usage (per Ccf) 1st 600 \$0.1404 \$0.1401 Next 800 For all usage For all usage Next 1,000 Excess

Charges for the St. Joseph territory refer to Rate 920 (applicable to all areas except Fairfax, Rock Port and Tarkio) and Rate 921 (applicable to Fairfax, Rock Port and Tarkio).

L&U Charge: the Company's system-wide Lost and Unaccounted (L&U) Account as computed in the Company's annual PGA will be applied on a volumetric basis to the quantity of gas delivered to the end-user.

Interim Purchased Gas Adjustment Charges: End-users shall be charged the appropriate system's ACA, Refund, TOP and TC factors as listed on Company's sheet numbers 9.4. New customers or customers electing transportation service shall be charged the appropriate ACA charges for a period of one year after changing service to this schedule. These charges shall terminate after a customer has been served under this schedule for one year.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.9 SHEET NO. 32.9

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

<u>Mandatory Charges:</u> Monthly bills to aggregators shall reflect the charges as described in Section E of this service schedule, including:

Aggregation Charge
Daily Balancing Charge
Daily Out-of-Balance Charge
Monthly Cash-out Charge
Line Loss Charge
Unauthorized Delivery Charge

Optional Services: Additional services may be selected, as described in Section I, including:

Daily Balancing Service Aggregation Pooling Service Billing Service

- 4. <u>Security:</u> Aggregator shall provide Company with security for aggregator's performance hereunder in the form of a letter of credit or a performance bond in the amount of \$250,000.00 no later than ten (10) days prior to the date gas first flows to one or more of aggregator's end-users. Company reserves the right to periodically review the sufficiency of said security and, if deemed necessary as a prudent business practice, may require an increase in such amount.
- 5. <u>General Rules, Regulations, Terms and Conditions</u>: Service hereunder is subject to Company's General Rules and Regulations and applicable transportation provisions on file with the Missouri Public Service Commission.
- 6. <u>Taxes</u>: Service received under this tariff shall be conducted through energy sellers who have received certification from the Missouri Public Service Commission pursuant to 4 CSR 240-45.010 in compliance with Sections 393.297 through 393.301, RSMo.
- 7. Experimental School Aggregation Program: Pursuant to Sec. 393.310.1 RSMo, the fee for aggregation and balancing services for schools aggregating gas requirements under this schedule shall be \$0.004 per Therm during the twelve (12) month period following the approval date of this schedule. After the initial twelve (12) months of this program, the charges described in paragraphs H and I will apply to all small volume customers, including schools. No telemetry shall be required unless a facility is expected to consume over 100,000 Therms annually. This experimental program shall be in effect from November 1, 2002 to June 30, 2005.
 - a. Reporting. The Company shall, no later than August 1 in each year of the experimental program, provide records of the revenues and expenses incurred as a result of this experimental program. These records shall be provided to the Staff of the Missouri Public Service Commission and the Office of the Public Counsel, and shall be categorized in sufficient detail to permit the parties to determine what under- or over-recovery of expenses may exist at that time, and to determine what changes in rates, if any, may be appropriate to prevent any harm to the groups identified in RSMo Sec. 393.310. The Commission may, no later than November 1st of each year of the experimental program, implement any adjustments in rates it deems appropriate to comply with RSMo. 393.310.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.10

SHEET NO. 32.10

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

b. Annual Cost True-Up. Company shall file annually on or about November 1 to receive Commission approval to recover costs incurred to implement this experimental program. This cost recovery application may include first year costs that exceed the \$0.04 per Therm limit contained in RSMo. 393.310, PGA-related costs and administrative costs incurred by the Company.

For:

c. Collection of Gross Receipts Taxes. The marketer or aggregator will collect gross receipts taxes applicable to the cost of gas purchased by marketers for end users. The marketer or aggregator may alternatively subscribe to Company's billing service, described in Sec. I.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.11

SHEET NO. 32.11

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas Ćity, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.12

SHEET NO. 32.12

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

F. NOMINATIONS

<u>Requirements.</u> Customers are required to nominate daily. Customers requesting volumes to flow on the first day of any month must contact Company's Gas Control Department via Company's Internet-enabled electronic bulletin board, known as Gas Track Online (http://www.gastrackonline.com), and inform them of the volumes to be transported by receipt point(s) and delivery point(s). First of the month nominations and daily nominations via the Internet are due by 11:30 a.m. Central Time one day before the gas flows. Intra-day nomination for the 2nd through the 31st days of a month will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. Central Time. A confirmed pipeline nomination will also be accepted on a best effort basis on the day of gas flow.

For:

- 2. Special Requirements. All Small Volume sales customers switching to transportation service will be assigned a Maximum Daily Quantity (MDQ) Level, as defined herein. Under certain circumstances the Company may, at its option, require customers to deliver and confirm its MDQ to the LDC receipt point up to a cumulative 10 days (in addition to interstate pipeline OFO and critical days) during the months of November through March. If MDQ delivery does not occur, then customer must curtail to the level of their confirmed nomination. Confirmation occurs when Company receives confirmed nomination from the interstate pipeline. MDQ may be required if:
 - 1. The interstate pipeline calls a Critical Day Order.
 - 2. The interstate pipeline calls an Operational Flow Order,
 - 3. The Company calls a Critical Day Order.
 - 4. The Company calls an Operational Flow Order.

In (1) and (2) above, the Customer must, without notice from the Company, deliver its MDQ to the LDC receipt point. In (3) and (4) above, the Company will give the Customer 25 hours notice prior to the start of the gas day. If the Customer fails to deliver its MDQ as required in (1), (2), or (3), the Company shall assess a penalty to Customer for each Mcf that Customer fails to deliver in an amount equal to the highest daily penalty applicable to the Operational Flow Order or Critical Day, as defined by the interstate pipeline in its tariff. If Company has not called a Critical Day but has issued an Operational Flow Order (4), and customer fails to deliver its MDQ, then Company will assess a penalty to customer in an amount equal to that identified in Paragraph I for each Mcf that customer failed to deliver.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

Attachment 1 - page 46 of 55

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.13

SHEET NO. 32.13

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

G. BALANCING

To assure system integrity, the customer is responsible for: 1) providing daily scheduling of deliveries which accurately reflect customer's expected consumption, and 2) balancing deliveries to Company' system with volumes consumed at the delivery points and adjusted for Lost and Unaccounted gas. Failure to fulfill these responsibilities will result in Customer incurring balancing and/or scheduling charges as described below.

- 1. Daily Balancing Charges. A daily charge shall apply to any aggregator or end user served through ANR Pipeline Company, or any other pipeline that subsequently adopts daily scheduling charges, and whose out-of-balance condition exceeds the daily scheduling tolerance. This daily charge is applied to the daily quantities by which customer's out-of-balance condition exceeds customer's daily scheduling tolerance. Actual daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for customers with recording equipment or telemetry. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for customers without recording equipment or telemetry, or whether such equipment malfunctions. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be determined based on available data including nominated quantities, meter readings, customer load characteristic, actual weather conditions, and other information. This daily charge is accumulated and assessed monthly. This charge is in addition to the charges set forth in each of the company's transportation rate schedules. For each pipeline, the FERC approved charges apply. See Section K.
- 2. Monthly Imbalances. The difference between monthly confirmed nominated volumes and actual consumption will be charged to and/or credited to the Customer (cashed out) using the indices shown in Section K, plus pipeline fuel, pipeline capacity and commodity charges. In addition, the cash out price is tiered to encourage good performance and discourage supply price arbitrage using the LDC as a supply bank.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.14

SHEET NO. 32.14

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

H. MANDATORY CHARGES

The following charges shall apply to Customers taking service under the Company's transportation rate schedules:

- 1. Aggregation Charge: A monthly aggregation charge shall be charged per pool of end-users for the purpose of nominating and balancing transportation deliveries on a common pipeline in the same pipeline operating zone. This charge shall be \$0.004 for each Ccf delivered for the pool.
- 2. Daily Balancing Charge: A charge shall apply to any small volume Customer served through any pipeline that balances on a daily basis. Under this service, a small volume Customer is provided operating flexibility through balancing tolerances in excess of normal daily scheduling tolerances. The charge for this service shall be \$0.0075 per Ccf per month. Customers electing to purchase this service in lieu of telemetry shall be exempted from daily out-of-balance charges, except during a critical day or when an operational flow order is imposed. The revenues collected as a result of this balancing service shall be credited to the respective system's ACA accounts.
- 3. Daily Out-of-Balance Charge: A daily charge shall apply to any Customer served through PEPL or any other pipeline that subsequently adopts daily scheduling charges, and whose out-of-balance condition exceeds the daily scheduling tolerance during a critical day or when an operational flow order is imposed. This daily charge is applied to the daily quantities by which Customer's out-ofbalance condition exceeds Customer's daily scheduling tolerance. Actual daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for end-users with recording equipment or telemetry. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be used to determine the out-of-balance condition for end-users without recording equipment or telemetry, or where such equipment malfunctions. Estimated daily delivery quantities shall be determined based on available data, including nominated quantities, meter readings, end-user load characteristics, actual weather conditions and other information.
 - On critical days or when operational flow orders have been declared, daily out-of-balance charges otherwise applicable shall be waived if Customer is in an overage condition.
 - On critical days or when operational flow orders have been declared, the daily scheduling charges will be applied according to the tables shown in Section K.
- 4. Monthly Cash-Out Charge: At the end of each calendar month, Customer is required to balance its receipts and deliveries. Any variance between Customer's receipts and deliveries will result in the "cash-out" of imbalance volumes. See Section K.
- 5. Line Loss Charge: Line loss charges will be the Company's system-wide Lost and Unaccounted (L&U) Account as computed in the Company's annual PGA, and applied on a volumetric basis to the quantity of gas delivered to the end-user.
- 6. Penalties for Unauthorized Takes: If customer fails to curtail its use of gas hereunder when requested to do so by Company, customer shall be billed at the transportation charge plus the cost of gas Company secures for the customer, plus the greater of either the pipeline daily delivery variance charges or \$20 per Mcf, for gas used in excess of the volumes of gas to which customer is limited. Revenues related to unauthorized takes will be credited to the Company's PGA. Company may in addition disconnect customer's supply of gas if customer fails to curtail its use thereof when requested by Company to do so. Curtailment of transportation volumes will take place according to the priority class, which the end-user would have been assigned if it were purchasing gas from Company. During curtailment, the end-user is entitled to a credit equal to the difference between the volumes delivered to Company and those received by the end-user, adjusted for lost, unaccounted-for and company used gas.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.15

SHEET NO. 32.15

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

I. OPTIONAL SERVICES

The following optional services are available to transportation Customers, who may choose the services that best serve their needs. Aggregators shall designate on their Marketer Agreement which, if any of the following services they desire. All charges for Optional Services are in addition to the monthly charges in the Company's transportation rate schedule.

- 1. Balancing Service: Under this optional service, Customers are provided additional flexibility in being able to balance their receipts with deliveries on a monthly basis. Small Volume Customers may negotiate a tolerance window and various cash-out rates for overage and underage conditions. Customers who elect transportation service may purchase the service in lieu of meeting Company's Transportation Tariff requirements for the installation of telemetry and daily scheduling requirements. Customers choosing this balancing service must submit a daily nomination to Company for those days the service is used. The special requirements for nominations, found in Paragraph F, apply to this service. The cost of the service is 7.5¢ per Mcf transported on Company's system. Revenues collected from the provision of this service will be credited to the overall general system gas cost through Company' PGA mechanism. This monthly charge is in addition to the monthly charges set forth in Company's service rate schedules.
- 2. Aggregation Pooling Service: A Customer may combine a group of end-users situated behind multiple town border stations (TBS) and served by a common pipeline with the same balancing provisions and the same interstate pipeline operational zone. Large volume and small volume end users with telemetry may be aggregated into common pools; small volume customers that purchase the Balancing Service cannot be aggregated with customers on telemetry. If a Marketer purchases this aggregation service, the aggregated group will be considered as one Customer for purposes of calculating the daily scheduling penalties and monthly imbalances, i.e., individual Customer nominations and consumption will be summed and treated as if they were one Customer. This does not include aggregation of fixed costs or customer charges. The cost of this aggregation service is \$0.04 per Mcf of gas delivered to the aggregated group. Revenues received from this service shall be credited to the Company's PGA mechanism. If the Customer purchases this service, the aggregated pools will be considered as one aggregated pool for the purposes of calculating daily out-of-balance charges; however, during Critical and OFO Days nominating and balancing will be required by the affected receipt and delivery points.
- 3. Billing Service: Company will provide an integrated billing service for aggregator for a monthly fee equal to \$1.00 multiplied by each end-user service point.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.16

SHEET NO. 32.16

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

J. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

The following terms and conditions shall apply to aggregators, and end-users where applicable, taking service under Company's applicable rate schedule:

- 1. Balancing: Customer shall have the obligation to balance on both a daily and monthly basis, gas receipts (transportation gas delivered to Company at the receipt point), with thermally equivalent gas deliveries (transportation gas delivered by Company to end user(s) at the delivery point(s)). The difference between cumulative receipts and cumulative deliveries is considered an out-ofbalance condition. Upon termination of service hereunder, either the Customer shall purchase sufficient quantities of gas to satisfy any negative out-of-balance condition or the Company shall purchase Customer's positive out-of-balance quantities. These purchases shall be completed in accordance with the provisions of Company's monthly cash-out provisions. In addition, Customer shall be responsible for any other applicable charge(s) set forth in Company's rate schedules. Delivery from systems with a single source of gas supply will use the transporting entity's statement as to volumes and heating value shall be taken as conclusive. Delivery from systems with multiple sources of gas supply shall be determined based on the heating value of the gas delivered to the end-user to determine the requirement for thermal balancing.
- 2. Billing: The order of gas delivery for purposes of billing calculations will initially be to utilize Customer-owned gas, including correction of any imbalance conditions and then utilize sales gas based on Company's applicable tariffs.
- 3. Curtailment/Interruption of Service: Transportation service provided by Company is based on Company's best efforts to deliver for the account of Customer, gas received for the account of the Customer. In the event of force majeure or system capacity limitations, it may be necessary to interrupt deliveries from time to time. If transportation service interruption or curtailment is required, Company shall endeavor to curtail deliveries on the affected parts of its system in the following order: Large Volume, General Service and Residential. If Company is required to curtail transportation service, then such interruptions or curtailments shall be governed by Company's curtailment provisions associated with sales gas service, which are contained in Section 3.07 of Company's Rules and Regulations -- Gas.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary herein, Company may fully or partially curtail service to transportation service end-users when, in Company's opinion, curtailment or interruption is necessary to protect the delivery of gas to general system customers with higher priority uses, or to protect the integrity of its system. Company shall allocate, as equitably as practicable, the capacity that is available, taking into consideration priority of use or other factors it deems necessary to ensure public health and safety.

- 4. Delinguent Payment Penalty: A late payment charge in an amount equal to one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the delinquent amount owed for current service will be added to the bill if payment is not received on or before the net due date stated on the bill. The net due date shall be the twenty-first (21st) day after the date of billing.
- 5. Facility: Shall include all meters serving buildings under common ownership behind the same town border station.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

For:

SHEET NO. 32.17

SHEET NO. 32.17

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

- Delivery Volume Requirement: The Company is not required to deliver volumes of gas in excess of receipts.
- 7. <u>Failure to Comply</u>: If aggregator or end-user fail to comply with or perform any of the obligations of its part, the Company shall have the right to give end-user written notice of the Company's intention to terminate the transportation service on account of such failure. The Company shall then have the right to terminate such transportation service after the expiration of five days after giving said notice, unless the aggregator or end-user shall make good such failure. Termination of such transportation service for any such cause shall be a cumulative remedy as to the Company, and shall not release the aggregator or end-user from its obligation to make payment of any amount or amounts due or to become due from the aggregator or end-user to the Company under the applicable schedule. In order to resume transportation service after termination of service hereunder, it shall be necessary for end-user to reapply for service.
- 8. Force Majeure: The term "force majeure" as employed herein shall mean acts and events not within the control of the party claiming suspension and shall include acts of God, strikes, lockouts, material or equipment or labor shortages, wars, riots, insurrections, epidemics, landslides, lightning, earthquakes, fires, storms, floods, washouts, arrests and restraints of rulers and peoples, interruptions by government or court orders, present or future orders of any regulatory body having proper jurisdiction, civil disturbances, explosions, breakage or accident to machinery or lines of pipes, freezing of wells or pipelines, and any other cause, whether of the kind herein enumerated or otherwise, not within the control of the party claiming suspension and which, by the exercise of due diligence, such party is unable to overcome. If either the Company, aggregator or end-user is rendered unable by force majeure to wholly or in part carry out its obligations under the provisions of any rate schedule, the obligations of the party affected by such force majeure, other than the obligation to make payments there under shall be suspended during the continuance of any inability so caused but for no longer period; and such cause shall, in so far as possible, be remedied with all reasonable dispatch. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the service provided by Company hereunder is limited to the transportation of aggregator or end-user owned gas received by the Company for the account of aggregator or end-user. In the event of a force majeure condition that restricts or limits aggregator's or end-user's ability to cause to be delivered to Company gas for the account of the aggregator or end-user, Company is under no obligation to deliver gas to aggregator or end-user. Company is under no obligation to deliver gas to the aggregator or end-user for the account of aggregator or end-user that has not been received by the Company for the account of aggregator or end-user.
- Gas Quality: All end-user-owned gas transported hereunder shall be of commercial quality. If the
 gas tendered for transportation is not of commercial quality or is gas which will adversely impact the
 gas stream of Company, said gas shall not be transported.
- 10. Gas Supply: Customer shall arrange for the purchase of gas other than Company's supply and for the delivery of such gas to a Company receipt point(s). End-user shall execute a written End-User Verification Form for transportation services pursuant to the applicable rate schedule containing such terms and conditions as may be reasonably required.
- 11. <u>Joint Rate Transportation Service</u>: Refers to the purchase of gas transportation service, which includes a level of firm and interruptible interstate pipeline capacity. Transportation service will not commence until the Customer files with the Company a completed Service Request Form and all other applicable documentation. Company shall be deemed to have title to transportation gas, as necessary, to arrange interstate pipeline transportation to Company' system.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5 Original

SHEET NO. 32.18 SHEET NO. 32.18

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

- 12. <u>Laws, Regulations, and Orders</u>: All agreements and the respective rights and obligations of the parties hereto are subject to all present and future valid laws, orders, rules, and regulations of any legislative body, or duly constituted authority now or hereafter having jurisdiction and shall be varied and amended to comply with or conform to any valid rule, regulation, order, or direction of any board, tribunal, or administrative agency with jurisdiction that affects any of the provisions of the agreement.
- 13. <u>Liability</u>: Gas shall be and shall remain the property of the aggregator or end-user while being transported and delivered by the Company. The Company shall not be liable to the aggregator or end-user for any loss arising from or out of gas transportation service while in the Company's system or for any other cause, except for gross or willful negligence of the Company's own employees. The Company reserves the right to commingle gas of the aggregator or end-user with other gas supplies. The aggregator or end-user shall be responsible for determining the extent of and maintaining all insurance it deems necessary to protect its property interest in such gas before, during, and after receipt by the Company.
- 14. <u>Marketer Agreement</u>: Each prospective aggregator is required to execute a Marketer Agreement, which shall specify the service(s) requested by aggregator, the method under which aggregator elects to be billed, and the term of the agreement. Regardless of billing arrangements elected, the aggregator shall be responsible for payment for all service(s) provided.
- 15. Measurement: All transport gas shall be measured on a volumetric basis. Measurement shall be based on available information regarding volumes received and delivered, pressure and temperature conditions, and energy content of the gas stream. Company shall determine the measurement equipment required to determine the receipts and deliveries of end-user owned gas transported hereunder.
- 16. <u>Minimum Term</u>: The minimum term of service shall be 6 months for small volume end users and one year for large volume service. The Company, at its sole discretion, may allow a term less than the one (1) year or six (6) month minimums.
- 17. Nomination: Customers are required to nominate daily. Customers requesting volumes to flow on the first day of any month must contact Company's Gas Control Department via Company's Internet-enabled electronic bulletin board, known as Gas Track Online (http://www.gastrackonline.com), and inform them of the volumes to be transported by receipt point(s) and delivery point(s). First of the month nominations and daily nominations via the Internet are due by 11:30 a.m. Central Time one day before the gas flows. Intra-day nomination for the 2nd through the 31st days of a month will be accepted until 5:00 p.m. Central Time. A confirmed pipeline nomination will also be accepted on a best effort basis on the day of gas flow. Any nomination that may take unfair advantage of any tariff provision may be rejected or changed by the Company.
- 18. Notices Required to Transport or Return to Sales Service: Customers shall notify Company a minimum of fourteen (14) days prior to the beginning of the end-user's meter-reading cycle of their intent to begin or change service under the applicable transportation rate schedule through the filing of an End-User Verification Form or addendum thereto with Company. Any addition, deletion or change in end-user transportation service shall occur at the start of the end-user's billing cycle. Notification shall include aggregator and end-user names and addresses; receipt and delivery point(s) to be nominated; service(s) to be subscribed for; billing information; and other information

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.19

SHEET NO. 32.19

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For:

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

as Company or aggregator may deem appropriate. Transportation service will not commence until end-user has executed a written End-User Verification Form with the Company. Aggregators who notify Company on behalf of end-users of their intent to provide transportation service to end-user without end-user's approval shall pay a penalty of \$100 per end-user occurrence. Repeated occurrences by aggregator will result in aggregator not being permitted to continue transportation service. Any energy seller, supplier, marketer or broker that serves more than one end-user that is eligible to be pooled for the purpose of forming an aggregation pool will be deemed to be an aggregator, and will be required to execute a Marketer Agreement

- 19. Operational Flow Order Penalty: Aggregators who fail to deliver to Company for the account of end-user(s) specified operational flow ordered quantities of gas shall be billed appropriate "Unauthorized Delivery" charges. Aggregators who repeatedly fail to deliver to Company specified operational flow order quantities of gas will not be permitted to continue transportation service.
- 20. <u>Pipeline Charges</u>. Any specific charges that Company incurs from the pipeline on behalf of customer will be passed through to that customer. Such charges include but are not limited to those that may be imposed by an applicable pipeline as set forth in paragraphs H and I.
- 21. Recording and Telemetry Equipment: Company shall notify end-users if existing equipment is not sufficient to measure service under the applicable rate schedule. If so, Company may install such equipment as it deems necessary. Company shall be allowed access for maintaining and operating such equipment. End-user shall be responsible for the costs associated with the Company acquiring and installing recording and/or telemetry equipment at the delivery point. When telemetry equipment is installed, the end-user will be required to provide telephone or other interfaces agreed to by the Company along with electrical connections available at the meter location. If recording and/or telemetry equipment is deemed necessary, but the end-user is unwilling or unable to pay for the cost of such equipment, then the end-user may return to sales service, provided all other requirements of Section 18 have been met. All Small Volume transportation customers must have Company install telemetry equipment or purchase the Balancing Service provided in Section J.1 herein. Customers must reimburse the Company for the cost incurred by Company to install telemetry equipment and for the cost of any other improvements made by Company in order to provide this transportation service. Customer shall also provide telephonic access and service to this telemetry equipment. The Company will offer financing for periods up to 90 days interest free. The Company will offer financing with interest to a customer to pay for the installation of telemetry equipment for a period of more than 90 days but not more than 12 consecutive months on a non-regulated basis. The telemetry equipment and any other improvements made by the Company shall remain the property of the Company, and will be maintained by the Company.
- 22. <u>Service Agreement Required</u>: Customer shall execute a written contract for transportation service containing such terms and conditions as Company reasonably requires. Gas transportation agreements and applicable documents are available at the Company's electronic website, www.networks.aquila.com. The Company will provide a written copy of the agreements if requested by the customer.
- 23. <u>Successors and Assigns</u>: Any party which shall succeed by purchase, merger, or consolidation, in whole or in part, to the interests of any aggregator or end-user, shall be subject to the obligations of its predecessor in title under an agreement. No other assignment of an agreement or any of the rights or obligations hereunder shall be made unless there first shall have been obtained the consent thereto of the non-assigning party, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld. Any party may assign its respective right, title, and interest in and to under an agreement to a trustee or

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.20

SHEET NO. 32.20

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

trustees, individual or corporate, as security for bonds or other obligations or securities without the necessity of any such assignee becoming in any respect obligated to perform the obligation of the assignor under an agreement and, if any such trustee be a corporation, without its being required to qualify to do business in any state in which performance of an agreement may occur.

For:

24. Termination of Participation: End-Users shall notify Company whenever an end-user ceases to be a part of the aggregator's pool. Termination of participation in an aggregator's pool by an end-user, whether by choice of aggregator or end-user, may necessitate a determination by Company of the amount of capacity needed to serve the end-user. Capacity initially assigned and necessary to service end-user shall remain with the end-user. End-users that choose service from another aggregator must notify Company with a signed End-User Verification Form. Forms are available from aggregators or the Company via GasTrack Online. Notification is required at least fourteen (14) days prior to the nomination deadline for the first day of the end-user's billing cycle. If such notification is not provided within said time frame, then service from the original aggregator shall not terminate until the first day of the Company billing cycle for such end-user which begins at least thirty (30) days after receipt of the End-User Verification Form by the Company.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services

P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Canceling P.S.C. MO. No. 5

Original

SHEET NO. 32.21

SHEET NO. 32.21

AQUILA, INC. d/b/a AQUILA NETWORKS-L&P

Kansas City, Missouri

For: All communities and rural areas receiving natural gas service

GAS TRANSPORTATION SERVICE

K. INTERSTATE PIPELINE SCHEDULING AND BALANCING CHARGES

- 1. ANR Pipeline Company
 - a. ANR Daily Balancing Penalties
 - i. Daily Imbalance Tolerance not to exceed MDQ
 - 1. If exceed MDQ, Customer may be subject to:
 - a. Authorized Overrun rate \$0.3232 per Dth
 - b. Unauthorized" Overrun rate greater of \$10.00 or two times the Spot Price Index for the service month
 - ii. Monthly Imbalance Tolerance not to exceed MDQ
 - b. ANR Daily OFO Penalties \$25.00 per Dth
 - c. ANR Monthly Imbalance Cash Out Tiers

| | Receipts > Deliveries | Deliveries > Receipts |
|------------------------|-----------------------|-----------------------|
| <u>Imbalance Level</u> | Due Company | <u>Due Customer</u> |
| 0% - 5% | Spot x 100% | Spot x 100% |
| >5% - 10% | Spot x 85% | Spot x 115% |
| >10% - 15% | Spot x 70% | Spot x 130% |
| >15% - 20% | Spot x 60% | Spot x 140% |
| >20% | Spot x 50% | Spot x 150% |

The "spot" market price shall be the ANR Oklahoma Spot Price Index.

Example:

If the nominated volume was 100 Mcf and the actual consumption was 130 Mcf, there is an imbalance of 30 Mcf due Company. The transportation customer would owe Company the following amount using the above hypothetical Spot market price of \$2.22: (*)

| 5 Mcf at \$2.22 x 100% | 11.10 |
|-------------------------|---------|
| 5 Mcf at \$2.22 x 115% | 12.77 |
| 5 Mcf at \$2.22 x 130% | 14.43 |
| 5 Mof at \$2.22 x 140% | 15.54 |
| 10 Mcf at \$2.22 x 150% | _33.30 |
| - | \$87.14 |

(*) These hypothetical prices are used for illustration purposes only.

DATE OF ISSUE: July 31, 2002

ISSSUED BY: Robert Amdor, Regulatory Services